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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

POSTAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except par value and share data)

September 30,
2022 December 31, 2021

(Unaudited)
Assets
Investments:
Real estate properties, at cost:

Land $ 85,950  $ 64,538 
Building and improvements 362,585  278,396 
Tenant improvements 6,220  5,431 

Total real estate properties, at cost 454,755  348,365 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (28,378) (20,884)

Total real estate properties, net 426,377  327,481 
Investment in financing leases, net 16,149  16,213 

Total real estate investments 442,526  343,694 
Cash 4,570  5,857 
Escrows and reserves 338  1,169 
Rent and other receivables 4,074  4,172 
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net 15,777  7,511 
Goodwill 1,536  — 
Deferred rent receivable 1,096  666 
In-place lease intangibles, net 16,174  14,399 
Above market leases, net 228  249 

Total Assets $ 486,319  $ 377,717 

Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities:

Term loans, net $ 123,882  $ 49,359 
Revolving credit facility 31,000  13,000 
Secured borrowings, net 32,908  32,990 
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other, net 8,569  8,225 
Below market leases, net 11,885  8,670 

Total Liabilities 208,244  112,244 
Commitments and Contingencies
Equity:
Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share; 500,000,000 shares authorized, 19,014,571 and 18,564,421

shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively 190  186 
Class B common stock, par value $0.01 per share; 27,206 shares authorized: 27,206 shares issued and

outstanding as of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 —  — 
Additional paid-in capital 245,793  237,969 

       Accumulated other comprehensive income 7,581  766 
Accumulated deficit (29,434) (18,879)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 224,130  220,042 
Operating Partnership unitholders’ non-controlling interests 53,945  45,431 

Total Equity 278,075  265,473 
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 486,319  $ 377,717 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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POSTAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except share data)

For the Three Months Ended
September 30,

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2022 2021 2022 2021
Revenues:

Rental income $ 13,181  $ 10,204  $ 36,665  $ 27,668 
Fee and other 594  325  1,765  1,137 

Total revenues 13,775  10,529  38,430  28,805 

Operating expenses:
Real estate taxes 1,836  1,625  5,131  3,877 
Property operating expenses 1,346  983  4,106  2,708 
General and administrative 3,040  2,596  9,990  7,881 
Depreciation and amortization 4,637  3,743  12,966  10,131 

Total operating expenses 10,859  8,947  32,193  24,597 

Income from operations 2,916  1,582  6,237  4,208 

Other income 44  159  718  276 
Interest expense, net:

Contractual interest expense (1,670) (734) (3,467) (2,000)
Write-off and amortization of deferred financing fees (156) (295) (440) (585)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt —  —  —  (202)
Interest income —  1  1  2 

Total interest expense, net (1,826) (1,028) (3,906) (2,785)

Income before income tax expense 1,134  713  3,049  1,699 
Income tax benefit (expense) 16  (37) (13) (75)

Net income 1,150  676  3,036  1,624 
Net income attributable to Operating Partnership unitholders’
non-controlling interests (219) (145) (557) (320)

Net income attributable to common stockholders $ 931  $ 531  $ 2,479  $ 1,304 

Net income per share:
Basic and Diluted $ 0.04  $ 0.03  $ 0.10  $ 0.06 

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic and Diluted 18,554,578  13,413,132  18,467,581  13,044,340 

Comprehensive income:
Net income $ 1,150  $ 676  $ 3,036  $ 1,624 

Unrealized gain on derivative instruments 5,352  394  8,367  394 
   Comprehensive income 6,502  1,070  11,403  2,018 

Comprehensive income attributable to Operating Partnership
unitholders’ non-controlling interests (1,240) (229) (2,109) (404)

Comprehensive income attributable to common stockholders $ 5,262  $ 841  $ 9,294  $ 1,614 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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POSTAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except share data)

Number of
shares of
Common

Stock
Common

Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income

Accumulated
Equity

(Deficit)

Total
Stockholders’

equity

Operating
Partnership
unitholders’

non-
controlling

interests
Total

Equity

Balance - December 31, 2020 9,464,403  $ 95  $ 100,812  $ —  $ (8,917) $ 91,990  $ 27,649  $ 119,639 
Net proceeds from sale of common
stock 3,737,500  37  53,203  —  —  53,240  —  53,240 
Issuance and amortization of
equity-based compensation 149,121  1  885  —  —  886  230  1,116 
Issuance and amortization under
ESPP 3,987  —  66  —  —  66  —  66 
Restricted stock withholdings (1,291) —  (21) —  —  (21) —  (21)
Dividends declared ($0.2175 per
share) —  —  —  —  (2,916) (2,916) (650) (3,566)
Net income —  —  —  —  103  103  23  126 
Reallocation of non-controlling
interest —  —  (3,831) —  —  (3,831) 3,831  — 
Balance – March 31, 2021 13,353,720 $ 133  $ 151,114  $ —  $ (11,730) $ 139,517  $ 31,083  $ 170,600 
Net proceeds from sale of common
stock 319,702  3  6,050  —  —  6,053  —  6,053 
Issuance of OP Units in connection
with acquisition transactions —  —  —  —  —  —  9,021  9,021 
Issuance and amortization of
equity-based compensation 17,102  —  499  —  —  499  281  780 
Amortization under ESPP —  —  8  —  —  8  —  8 
Restricted stock withholdings (10,906) —  (221) —  —  (221) —  (221)
Dividends declared ($0.22 per
share) —  —  —  —  (2,951) (2,951) (668) (3,619)
Net income —  —  —  —  671  671  152  823 
Reallocation of non-controlling
interest —  —  2,611  —  —  2,611  (2,611) — 
Balance – June 30, 2021 13,679,618 $ 136  $ 160,061  $ —  $ (14,010) $ 146,187  $ 37,258  $ 183,445 
Net proceeds from sale of common
stock 25,015  1  408  —  —  409  —  409
Issuance of OP Units in connection
with acquisition transactions —  —  —  —  —  —  6,480  6,480 
Forfeiture and amortization of
equity-based compensation (468) —  495  —  —  495  326  821 
Issuance and amortization under
ESPP 5,117  —  88  —  —  88  —  88 
Dividends declared ($0.2225 per
share) —  —  —  —  (3,054) (3,054) (841) (3,895)
Accumulated other comprehensive
income —  —  —  310  —  310  84  394 
Net income —  —  —  —  531  531  145  676 
Reallocation of non-controlling
interest —  —  2,262  —  —  2,262  (2,262) — 
Balance – September 30, 2021 13,709,282 $ 137  $ 163,314  $ 310  $ (16,533) $ 147,228  $ 41,190  $ 188,418 
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Balance - December 31, 2021 18,591,627  $ 186  $ 237,969  $ 766  $ (18,879) $ 220,042  $ 45,431  $ 265,473 
Issuance of OP Units in connection
with acquisition transactions —  —  —  —  —  —  3,238  3,238 
Issuance and amortization of equity-
based compensation 199,102  2  1,426  —  —  1,428  371  1,799 
Issuance and amortization under ESPP 5,387  —  100  —  —  100  —  100 
Restricted stock withholdings (3,492) —  (62) —  —  (62) —  (62)
Dividends declared ($0.2275 per
share) —  —  —  —  (4,295) (4,295) (902) (5,197)
Accumulated other comprehensive
income —  —  —  2,072  —  2,072  439  2,511 
Net income —  —  —  —  595  595  126  721 
Reallocation of non-controlling
interest —  —  346  —  —  346  (346) — 
Balance – March 31, 2022 18,792,624 $ 188  $ 239,779  $ 2,838  $ (22,579) $ 220,226  $ 48,357  $ 268,583 
Issuance of OP Units in connection
with acquisition transactions —  —  —  —  —  —  1,987  1,987 
Issuance and amortization of equity-
based compensation, net of forfeitures (471) —  618  —  —  618  366  984 
Issuance and amortization under ESPP —  —  2  —  —  2  —  2 
Restricted stock withholdings (14,590) —  (221) —  —  (221) —  (221)
Dividends declared ($0.23 per share) —  —  —  —  (4,342) (4,342) (963) (5,305)
Accumulated other comprehensive
income —  —  —  412  —  412  92  504 
Net income —  —  —  —  —  953  953  212  1,165 
Reallocation of non-controlling
interest —  —  225  —  —  225  (225) — 
Balance – June 30, 2022 18,777,563 $ 188  $ 240,403  $ 3,250  $ (25,968) $ 217,873  $ 49,826  $ 267,699 
Net proceeds from sale of common
stock 227,473  2  3,505  —  —  3,507  —  3,507 
Issuance of OP Units in connection
with acquisition transactions —  —  —  —  —  —  4,713  4,713 
Issuance and amortization of equity-
based compensation, net of forfeitures 28,711  —  620  —  —  620  385  1,005 
Issuance and amortization under ESPP 8,030  —  117  —  —  117  —  117 
Dividends declared ($0.2325 per
share) —  —  —  —  (4,397) (4,397) (1,071) (5,468)
Accumulated other comprehensive
income —  —  —  4,331  —  4,331  1,021  5,352 
Net income —  —  —  —  931  931  219  1,150 
Reallocation of non-controlling
interest —  —  1,148  —  —  1,148  (1,148) — 

Balance – September 30, 2022 19,041,777  $ 190  $ 245,793  $ 7,581  $ (29,434) $ 224,130  $ 53,945  $ 278,075 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.   
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POSTAL REALTY TRUST, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(UNAUDITED)
(in thousands)

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 3,036  $ 1,624 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 7,744  5,548 
Amortization of in-place intangibles 5,222  4,583 
Write-off and amortization of deferred financing costs 440  585 
Amortization of above/below market leases (1,609) (1,174)
Amortization of intangible liability (67) (13)
Equity based compensation 3,712  2,752 
Loss on early extinguishment of debt —  202 
Deferred rent receivable (430) (291)

   Deferred rent expense payable 7  10 
Other 35  47 
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Rent and other receivables (396) (678)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 542  (617)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other 334  869 

Net cash provided by operating activities 18,570  13,447 

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of real estate (96,421) (60,748)
Investment in financing leases (10) — 
Repayment of financing lease —  4 
Escrows for acquisition and construction deposits (471) (512)
Capital improvements (2,930) (1,069)
Insurance proceeds related to property damage claims 557  977 
Other investing activities (718) (274)

Net cash used in investing activities (99,993) (61,622)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of secured borrowings (96) (13,840)

     Proceeds from term loan 75,000  50,000 
     Proceeds from revolving credit facility 105,000  101,000 

Repayments of revolving credit facility (87,000) (134,500)
Repayments from other financing activity —  (53)
Net proceeds from issuance of shares 3,507  59,865 
Deferred offering costs (199) — 
Debt issuance costs (623) (1,296)
Proceeds from issuance of ESPP shares 185  126 
Shares withheld for payment of taxes on restricted share vesting (383) (242)
Distributions and dividends (15,970) (11,080)
Other financing activities (116) (150)

Net cash provided by financing activities 79,305  49,830 
Net increase (decrease) in Cash and Escrows and Reserves (2,118) 1,655 
Cash and Escrows and Reserves at the beginning of period 7,026  3,271 
Cash and Escrow and Reserves at the end of period $ 4,908  $ 4,926 
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Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities
Unrealized gain on interest rate swaps, net 8,366  — 
OP Units issued for property acquisitions 8,487  9,031 
OP Units issued for business acquisition 1,451  — 
Reallocation of non-controlling interest 1,719  1,219 
Reclassification of acquisition costs included in prepaid expenses and other assets 696  792 
Accrued capital expenditures included in accounts payable and accrued expenses 445  336 
Write-off of fixed assets no longer in service 208  4 
Accrued costs of capital included in accounts payable and accrued expenses —  14 
Right of use assets 39  1,131 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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POSTAL REALTY TRUST, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Note 1. Organization and Description of Business

Postal Realty Trust, Inc. (the “Company”) was organized in the state of Maryland on November 19, 2018. On May 17, 2019, the Company completed
its initial public offering (“IPO”) of the Company’s Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Class A common stock”). The Company contributed
the net proceeds from the IPO to Postal Realty LP, a Delaware limited partnership (the “Operating Partnership”), in exchange for common units of limited
partnership interest in the Operating Partnership (the “OP Units”). Both the Company and the Operating Partnership commenced operations upon completion
of the IPO and certain related formation transactions. Prior to the completion of the IPO and the formation transactions, the Company had no operations.

The Company’s interest in the Operating Partnership entitles the Company to share in distributions from, and allocations of profits and losses of, the
Operating Partnership in proportion to the Company’s percentage ownership of OP Units. As the sole general partner of the Operating Partnership, the
Company has the exclusive power under the partnership agreement to manage and conduct the Operating Partnership’s business, subject to limited approval
and voting rights of the limited partners. As of September 30, 2022, the Company held an approximately 80.6% interest in the Operating Partnership. As the
sole general partner and the majority interest holder, the Company consolidates the financial position and results of operations of the Operating Partnership.
The Operating Partnership is considered a variable interest entity (“VIE”) in which the Company is the primary beneficiary.

As of September 30, 2022, the Company owned a portfolio of 1,232 properties located in 49 states and one territory. The Company’s properties are
leased primarily to a single tenant, the United States Postal Service (the “USPS”).

In addition, through its taxable REIT subsidiary (“TRS”), Real Estate Asset Counseling, LLC (formerly known as Postal Realty Management TRS,
LLC) (“REAC”), the Company provides fee-based third party property management services for an additional 397 properties, which are owned by Andrew
Spodek, the Company's chief executive officer ("CEO"), and his affiliates, and certain advisory services to third-party owners of postal properties.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of amendment and restatement, the Company is currently authorized to issue up to 500,000,000 shares of Class A
common stock, 27,206 shares of Class B common stock, $0.01 par value per share (the “Voting Equivalency stock”), and up to 100,000,000 shares of preferred
stock.

The Company elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”),
commencing with the Company's short taxable year ended December 31, 2019. As a REIT, the Company generally will not be subject to federal income tax to
the extent that it distributes its REIT taxable income for each tax year to its stockholders. REITs are subject to a number of organizational and operational
requirements.

Pursuant to the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act, the Company qualifies as an emerging growth company (“EGC”). An EGC may choose, as the
Company has done, to take advantage of the extended private company transition period provided for complying with new or revised accounting standards that
may be issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) or the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial position and results of operations of the Company, the Operating
Partnership and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

The Company consolidates the Operating Partnership, a VIE in which the Company is considered the primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiary is
the entity that has (i) the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the entity’s economic performance and (ii) the obligation to absorb losses
of the VIE or the right to receive benefits from the VIE that could be significant to the VIE.

A non-controlling interest is defined as the portion of the equity in an entity not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are required to be presented as a separate component of equity in the Consolidated

7
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POSTAL REALTY TRUST, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
(CONTINUED)

Balance Sheets. Accordingly, the presentation of net income reflects the income attributed to controlling and non-controlling interests.

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 8 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all
of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements.

This interim financial information should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021. Management believes that all adjustments of a normal, recurring nature considered necessary for
a fair presentation have been included. This interim financial information does not necessarily represent or indicate what the operating results will be for the
year ending December 31, 2022. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Although management believes its estimates are reasonable, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Offering and Other Costs

Offering costs are recorded in “Total Stockholders’ Equity” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as a reduction of additional paid-in capital.

Deferred Costs

Financing costs related to the issuance of the Company’s long-term debt, including the term loan facility component of the Company's existing credit
facilities (the "Credit Facilities"), are deferred and amortized as an increase to interest expense over the term of the related debt instrument using the straight-
line method, which approximates the effective-interest rate method, and are reported as a reduction of the related debt balance on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Deferred financing costs related to the revolving credit facility component (the "2021 Revolving Credit Facility") of the Credit Facilities are deferred
and amortized as an increase to interest expense over the terms of the 2021 Revolving Credit Facility and are included in “Prepaid expenses and other assets,
net” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period’s presentation.

Cash and Escrows and Reserves

Cash includes unrestricted cash with a maturity of three months or less. Escrows and reserves consist of restricted cash. The following table provides a
reconciliation of cash and escrows and reserves reported within the Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows:

As of
September 30,

2022
December 31,

2021
(in thousands)

Cash $ 4,570  $ 5,857 
Escrows and reserves:

Maintenance reserve 179  827 
Real estate tax reserve 104  250 
ESPP reserve 55  92 

Cash and escrows and reserves $ 4,908  $ 7,026 
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POSTAL REALTY TRUST, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
(CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition

The Company has operating lease agreements with tenants, some of which contain provisions for future rental increases. Rental income is recognized
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. In addition, certain lease agreements provide for reimbursements from tenants for real estate taxes and other
recoverable costs, which are recorded on an accrual basis as part of “Rental income” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

Fee and other primarily consists of (i) property management fees, (ii) income recognized from properties accounted for as financing leases and (iii)
fees earned from providing advisory services to third-party owners of postal properties.

The management fees arise from contractual agreements with entities that are affiliated with the Company’s CEO. Management fee income is
recognized as earned under the respective agreements.

Revenue from direct financing leases is recognized over the lease term using the effective interest rate method. At lease inception, the Company
records an asset within "Investments in financing leases, net" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, which represents the Company’s net investment in the
direct financing leases. This initial net investment is determined by aggregating the total future minimum lease payments attributable to the direct financing
leases  and the estimated residual value of the property, if any, less unearned income. Over the lease term, the investment in the direct  financing leases  is
reduced and income is recognized as revenue in “Fee and other” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income and produces a
constant periodic rate of return on the investment in financing leases, net.

Revenue from advisory services is generated from service contracts generally based on (i) time and expense arrangements (where the Company
recognizes revenues based on hours incurred and contracted rates), (ii) fixed-fee arrangements (where the Company recognizes revenues earned to date by
applying the proportional performance method) or (iii) performance-based or contingent arrangements (where the Company recognizes revenues at a point in
time when the client receives the benefit of the promised service). Reimbursable expenses for the advisory services, including those relating to travel, out-of-
pocket expenses, outside consultants and other outside service costs, are generally included in revenues and in general and administrative expenses in the
period in which the expense is incurred.

Business Combinations, Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method, which requires the identification of the acquirer, the determination of
the acquisition date and the allocation of the purchase price paid by the acquirer to the identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired, the liabilities
assumed, including any contingent consideration and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at their acquisition date fair values. Goodwill represents the
excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired, including the amount assigned to identifiable intangible assets. Intangible assets may
include customer relationships, trademarks and acquired software. Identifiable intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their expected useful lives.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed in the periods in which the costs are incurred. The results of operations of acquired businesses are included in the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements from the acquisition date.

The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment at least annually, or as circumstances warrant. Goodwill is evaluated at the reporting unit level by
comparing the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount including goodwill. An impairment of goodwill exists if the carrying amount of the
reporting unit exceeds its fair value. The impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit’s fair value, limited to the total
amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives and reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If an impairment indicator is present, the Company evaluates recoverability
of assets to be held and used by a comparison of the carrying value of the assets with future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the assets.
The Company groups assets at the lowest level for which there are identifiable cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows generated by other
asset groups. If the total of the expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset group, the Company estimates the fair
value of the asset group to determine whether an impairment loss should be recognized.

Fair Value Measurements

The following disclosure of estimated fair value was determined by management using available market information and appropriate valuation
methodologies. However, considerable judgment is necessary to interpret market data and develop
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estimated fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could have realized on disposition
of the assets and liabilities as of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may
have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts. Cash, escrows and reserves, receivables, prepaid expenses and other assets (excluding derivatives),
accounts payable and accrued expenses are carried at amounts which reasonably approximate their fair values as of September 30, 2022 and December 31,
2021 due to their short maturities.

The fair value of the Company’s borrowings under its Credit Facilities approximates carrying value because such borrowings are subject to a variable
rate which reprices frequently. The fair value of the Company’s secured borrowings aggregated approximately $27.4 million and $32.1 million as compared to
the principal balance of $33.1 million and $33.2 million as of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. The fair value of the Company’s debt
was categorized as a Level 3 basis (as provided by ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures). The fair value of these financial instruments was
determined by using a discounted cash flow analysis based on the borrowing rates currently available to the Company for loans with similar terms and
maturities. The fair value of the mortgage debt was determined by discounting the future contractual interest and principal payments by a market rate.

The Company's derivative assets and liabilities, comprised of interest rate swap derivative instruments entered into in connection with the Credit
Facilities, are recorded at fair value based on a variety of observable inputs, including contractual terms, interest rate curves, yield curves, measure of volatility,
and correlations of such inputs. The Company measures its derivatives at fair value on a recurring basis based on the expected size of future cash flows on a
discounted basis and incorporating a measure of non-performance risk. The fair value of the Company's derivative assets and liabilities was categorized as a
Level 2 basis (as provided by ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures). The Company considers its own credit risk, as well as the credit risk of its
counterparties, when evaluating the fair value of its derivative assets and liabilities. As of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the fair value of the
Company’s interest rate swap derivative assets was approximately $9.3 million and $1.0 million, respectively, included in “Prepaid expenses and other assets,
net” on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Disclosure about fair value of assets and liabilities is based on pertinent information available to management as of September  30, 2022 and
December 31, 2021. Although management is not aware of any factors that would significantly affect the fair value amounts, such amounts have not been
comprehensively revalued for purposes of these financial statements since September 30, 2022 and current estimates of fair value may differ significantly from
the amounts presented herein.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

In accordance with ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, the Company records all derivative instruments on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair
value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of derivatives depends on the intended use of the derivative, whether the Company has elected to designate
a derivative in a hedging relationship and apply hedge accounting and whether the hedging relationship has satisfied the criteria necessary to apply hedge
accounting. Derivatives designated and qualifying as a hedge of the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows are considered cash flow hedges.
Hedge accounting generally provides for the matching of the timing of gain or loss recognition on the hedging instrument with the recognition of the changes
in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk in a fair value hedge or the earnings effect of the hedged forecasted
transactions in a cash flow hedge. The Company may enter into derivative contracts that are intended to economically hedge certain of its risks, even though
hedge accounting does not apply or the Company elects not to apply hedge accounting.

See Note 6. Derivatives and Hedging Activities for further details.

Impairment

The carrying value of real estate investments and related intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the aggregate projected future
cash flows over the anticipated holding period on an undiscounted basis. An impairment loss is measured based on the excess of the asset’s carrying amount
over its estimated fair value. Impairment analyses will be based on current plans, intended holding periods and available market information at the time the
analyses are prepared. If estimates of the projected future cash flows, anticipated holding periods or market conditions change, the evaluation of impairment
losses may be different and such differences may be material. The evaluation of anticipated cash flows is subjective and is based, in part, on assumptions
regarding future occupancy, rental rates and capital
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requirements that could differ materially from actual results. No impairments were recorded during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 and
2021.

Concentration of Credit Risks

As of September 30, 2022, the Company’s properties were leased primarily to a single tenant, the USPS. For the nine months ended September 30,
2022, 15.4% of the Company’s total rental income, or $5.6 million, was concentrated in Pennsylvania. For the nine months ended September 30, 2021, 18.3%
of the Company's total rental income, or $5.1 million, was concentrated in Pennsylvania. The ability of the USPS to honor the terms of its leases is dependent
upon regulatory, economic, environmental or competitive conditions in Pennsylvania or other regions where the Company operates in and could have a
material effect on the Company’s overall business results.

The Company has deposited cash and maintains its bank deposits with large financial institutions in amounts that, from time to time, exceed federally
insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Equity Based Compensation

The Company accounts for equity-based compensation in accordance with ASC Topic 718 Compensation – Stock Compensation, which requires the
Company to recognize an expense for the grant date fair value of equity-based awards. Equity-classified stock awards granted to employees and non-employees
that have a service condition and/or a market condition are measured at fair value at date of grant and remeasured at fair value only upon a modification of the
award. The Company records forfeitures as they occur.

The Company recognizes compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of each award, with the amount of
compensation expense recognized at the end of a reporting period at least equal the portion of fair value of the respective award at grant date or modification
date, as applicable, that has vested through that date. For awards with a market condition, compensation cost is not reversed if a market condition is not met so
long as the requisite service has been rendered, as a market condition does not represent a vesting condition.

See Note 11. Stockholder’s Equity for further details.

Insurance Accounting

The Company carries liability insurance to mitigate its exposure to certain losses, including those relating to property damage and business
interruption. The Company records the estimated amount of expected insurance proceeds for property damage and other losses incurred as an asset (typically a
receivable from the insurer) and income up to the amount of the losses incurred when the amount is determinable and approved by the insurance company. Any
amount of insurance recovery in excess of the amount of the losses incurred is considered a gain contingency and is not recorded in other income until the
amount is determinable and approved by the insurance company. Insurance recoveries for business interruption for lost revenue or profit are accounted for as
gain contingencies in their entirety, and therefore are not recorded in income until the amount is determinable and approved by the insurance company.

Earnings per Share

The Company calculates earnings per share ("EPS") based upon the weighted average shares outstanding less issued and outstanding non-vested
shares of Class A common stock. As of September  30, 2022 and 2021, the Company had unvested restricted shares of Class A common stock, long term
incentive units of the Operating Partnership ("LTIP Units") and certain restricted stock units (“RSUs”), which provide for non-forfeitable rights to dividend and
dividend equivalent payments. Accordingly, these unvested restricted shares of Class A common stock, LTIP Units and RSUs are considered participating
securities and are included in the computation of basic and diluted EPS pursuant to the two-class method. Diluted EPS is calculated after giving effect to all
potential dilutive shares outstanding during the period. See Note 10. Earnings Per Share for further details.

Future Application of Accounting Standards

In September 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments and in November 2018 issued ASU No. 2018-19, Codification
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Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses. The guidance changes how entities will measure credit losses for most financial assets and
certain other instruments that are not measured at fair value through net income. The guidance replaces the current "incurred loss" model with an "expected
loss" approach. The Company will also be required to disclose information about how it developed the allowances, including changes in the factors that
influenced the Company’s estimate of expected credit losses and the reasons for those changes. ASU No. 2018-19 excludes operating lease receivables from the
scope of this guidance. This guidance will be effective for the Company on January 1, 2023, as a result of its classification as an EGC. The Company is
currently in the process of evaluating the impact the adoption of the guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements.
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Note 3. Real Estate Acquisitions

The following tables summarizes the Company’s acquisitions for the nine months ended September 30, 2022. The purchase prices including
transaction costs were allocated to the separately identifiable tangible and intangible assets and liabilities based on their relative fair values at the date of
acquisition. The total purchase price including transaction costs was allocated as follows (in thousands, except for the number of properties):

Nine Months
Ended

Number of
Properties Land

Building
and

Improvements
Tenant

Improvements

In-place
lease

intangibles

Above-
market
leases

Below-
market
leases Other Total 

2022
March 31,

2022
(3)

50  $ 5,422  $ 22,233  $ 214  $ 1,889  $ 28  $ (1,848) $ (363) $ 27,575 
June 30, 2022 (4) 150  $ 13,039  $ 41,462  $ 380  $ 3,520  $ 2  $ (1,659) $ —  $ 56,744 
September 30,

2022
(5)

66  $ 2,950  $ 18,012  $ 195  $ 1,532  $ 8  $ (1,360) $ —  $ 21,337 
Total 266 $ 21,411  $ 81,707  $ 789  $ 6,941  $ 38  $ (4,867) $ (363) $ 105,656 

Explanatory Notes:

(1) Includes an intangible liability related to unfavorable operating leases on two properties during the three months ended March 31, 2022 that is included
in “Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

(2) Includes closing costs of approximately $0.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022, approximately $1.7 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2022 and approximately $0.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2022.

(3) Includes the acquisition of 50 properties in various states in individual or portfolio transactions for a price of approximately $27.6 million, including
closing costs, which was funded with both the issuance of OP Units to the sellers as non-cash consideration (valued at approximately $1.8 million using
the share price of Class A common stock on the date of each issuance of such OP Units) and borrowings under the Credit Facilities.

(4) Includes the acquisition of 150 properties in various states in individual or portfolio transactions for a price of approximately $56.7 million, including
closing costs, which was funded with both the issuance of OP Units to the sellers as non-cash consideration (valued at approximately $2.0 million using
the share price of Class A common stock on the date of each issuance of such OP Units) and borrowings under the Credit Facilities.

(5) Includes the acquisition of 66 properties in various states in individual or portfolio transactions for a price of approximately $21.3 million, including
closing costs, which was funded with both the issuance of OP Units to the sellers as non-cash consideration (valued at approximately $4.7 million using
the share price of Class A common stock on the date of each issuance of such OP Units) and borrowings under the Credit Facilities.

(1) (2)
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Note 4. Intangible Assets and Liabilities

The following table summarizes the Company’s intangible assets and liabilities:

As of
Gross Asset
(Liability)

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

(in thousands)
September 30, 2022:

In-place lease intangibles $ 38,810  $ (22,636) $ 16,174 
Above-market leases 357  (129) 228 
Below-market leases (18,536) 6,651  (11,885)

December 31, 2021:
In-place lease intangibles $ 31,814  $ (17,415) $ 14,399 
Above-market leases 319  (70) 249 
Below-market leases (13,654) 4,984  (8,670)

Amortization of in-place lease intangibles was $1.8 million and $5.2 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, respectively,
and $1.7 million and $4.6 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, respectively. This amortization is included in “Depreciation and
amortization” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

Amortization of acquired above market leases was $0.02 million and $0.06 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022,
respectively, and $0.01 million and $0.02 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, respectively, and is included as a reduction to
“Rental income” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income. Amortization of acquired below market leases was $0.6 million
and $1.7 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, respectively, and $0.4 million and $1.2 million for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2021, respectively, and is included as an increase to “Rental income” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

Future amortization of these intangibles is below (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31,
In-place lease

intangibles
Above-market

leases
Below-market

leases
2022-Remaining $ 1,724  $ 20  $ (590)
2023 5,830  79  (2,254)
2024 4,208  60  (1,885)
2025 2,491  44  (1,319)
2026 1,298  22  (1,056)
Thereafter 623  3  (4,781)
Total $ 16,174  $ 228  $ (11,885)
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Note 5. Debt

The following table summarizes the Company’s indebtedness as of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 (dollars in thousands):

Outstanding Balance as of
September 30,

2022

Outstanding
Balance as of
December 31,

2021

Interest
Rate at

September 30,
2022 Maturity Date

Revolving Credit Facility
2021 Revolving Credit Facility $ 31,000  $ 13,000  SOFR+150 bps January 2026

2021 Term Loan 50,000  50,000  SOFR+145 bps January 2027
2022 Term Loan 75,000  —  SOFR+145 bps February 2028
Secured Borrowings:

Vision Bank 1,409  1,409  3.69 % September 2041
First Oklahoma Bank 337  349  3.625 % December 2037
Vision Bank – 2018 844  844  3.69 % September 2041
Seller Financing 282  366  6.00 % January 2025
AIG – December 2020 30,225  30,225  2.80 % January 2031

Total Principal 189,097  96,193 
Unamortized deferred financing costs (1,307) (844)
Total Debt $ 187,790  $ 95,349 

Explanatory Notes:

(1) On August  9, 2021, the Company entered into the Credit Facilities, which included the $150.0 million 2021 Revolving Credit Facility and the $50.0
million senior unsecured term loan facility (the "2021 Term Loan"). In connection with entering into the Credit Facilities, the Company terminated its
previous credit facility and paid off the outstanding loans thereunder. On May 11, 2022, the Company amended the Credit Facilities (the "First
Amendment") to, among other things, add a new $75.0 million senior unsecured delayed draw term loan facility (the "2022 Term Loan"), replace the
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) with the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR") as the benchmark interest rate and allow for a
decrease in the applicable margin by 0.02% if the Company achieves certain sustainability targets. The Credit Facilities include an accordion feature
which permit the Company to borrow up to an additional $150.0 million under the 2021 Revolving Credit Facility and up to an additional $75.0 million
under the term loans, in each case subject to customary terms and conditions. The 2021 Revolving Credit Facility matures in January 2026, which may
be extended for two six-month periods subject to customary conditions, the 2021 Term Loan matures in January 2027 and the 2022 Term Loan matures in
February 2028. Borrowings under the Credit Facilities carry an interest rate of, (i) in the case of the 2021 Revolving Credit Facility, either a base rate
plus a margin ranging from 0.5% to 1.0% per annum or Adjusted Term SOFR (as defined below) plus a margin ranging from 1.5% to 2.0% per annum, or
(ii) in the case of the term loans, either a base rate plus a margin ranging from 0.45% to 0.95% per annum or Adjusted Term SOFR plus a margin
ranging from 1.45% to 1.95% per annum, in each case depending on the Company's consolidated leverage ratio. With respect to the 2021 Revolving
Credit Facility, the Company will pay, if the usage is equal to or less than 50%, an unused facility fee of 0.20% per annum, or if the usage is greater than
50%, an unused facility fee of 0.15% per annum, in each case on the average daily unused commitments under the 2021 Revolving Credit Facility. The
Credit Facilities contain a number of customary financial and non-financial covenants.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, the Company incurred $0.06 million and $0.2 million, respectively, and, during the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2021, the Company incurred $0.05 million and $0.2 million, respectively, of unused facility fees related to its
previous credit facility and the 2021 Revolving Credit Facility. As of September  30, 2022, the Company was in compliance with all of the Credit
Facilities’ debt covenants.

(2) Based upon the one-month Adjusted Term SOFR, which is SOFR plus a term SOFR adjustment of 0.10%, subject to a 0% floor (the “Adjusted Term
SOFR”).

(1):

(2)

(1) (2)

(1) (2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)
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(3) Five properties are collateralized under this loan and Mr. Spodek also provided a personal guarantee of payment for 50% of the outstanding amount
thereunder. The loan has a fixed interest rate of 3.69% for the first five years with interest payments only (ending in October 2026), then adjusting every
subsequent five year period thereafter with principal and interest payments to the rate based on the five year weekly average yield on United States
Treasury securities adjusted to a constant maturity of five years, as made available to the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the "Five-
Year Treasury Rate"), plus a margin of 2.75%, with a minimum annual rate of 2.75%.

(4) The loan is collateralized by first mortgage liens on four properties and a personal guarantee of payment by Mr. Spodek. The loan has a fixed interest
rate of 3.625% for the first five years (ending in August 2026), then adjusting annually thereafter to a variable annual rate of Wall Street Journal Prime
Rate with a minimum annual rate of 3.625%.

(5) The loan is collateralized by first mortgage liens on one property and a personal guarantee of payment by Mr. Spodek. The loan has a fixed interest rate
of 3.69% for the first five years with interest payments only (ending in October 2026), then adjusting every subsequent five year period thereafter with
principal and interest payments to the rate based on the Five-Year Treasury Rate, plus a margin of 2.75%, with a minimum annual rate of 2.75%.

(6) In connection with the acquisition of a property, the Company obtained seller financing secured by the property in the amount of $0.4 million requiring
five annual payments of principal and interest of $0.1 million with the first installment due on January 2, 2021 based on a 6.0% interest rate per annum
through January 2, 2025.

(7) The loan is secured by a first mortgage lien on an industrial property located in Warrendale, Pennsylvania. The loan has a fixed interest rate of 2.80%
with interest-only payments for the first five years and fixed payments of principal and interest thereafter based on a 30-year amortization schedule.

The weighted average maturity date for the Company's indebtedness as of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was 5.4 years and 6.5 years,
respectively.

The scheduled principal repayments of indebtedness as of September 30, 2022 are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31, Amount

2022 - Remaining $ 4 
2023 106 
2024 112 
2025 118 
2026 31,639 

Thereafter 157,118 
Total $ 189,097 

Note 6. Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The Company has four interest rate swaps with a total notional amount of $125.0 million that are used to manage its interest rate risk and fix the
SOFR component on the Credit Facilities. Within the $125.0 million, $50.0 million of the swaps mature in January 2027 and fix the interest rate of the 2021
Term Loan at 2.291% as of September 30, 2022. An additional $50.0 million of the swaps mature in February 2028 and fix the first $50.0 million amount
outstanding under the 2022 Term Loan at 4.237% as of September 30, 2022. The remaining $25.0 million of the swaps mature in February 2028 and fix the
remaining $25.0 million amount outstanding under the 2022 Term Loan at 4.81% as of September 30, 2022.

The Company’s objectives in using the interest rate derivatives are to add stability to interest expense and to manage its exposure to interest rate
movements. To accomplish these objectives, the Company uses the interest rate swaps as part of its interest rate risk management strategy. The interest rate
swaps are designated as cash flow hedges, with any gain or loss recorded in “Accumulated other comprehensive income” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
and subsequently reclassified into interest expense as interest payments are made on the Company’s Credit Facilities. During the next twelve months, the
Company estimates that an additional $2.6 million will be reclassified from “Accumulated other comprehensive income” as a decrease to interest expense.
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The Company does not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes and currently does not have any derivatives that are not designated as
hedges.

The table below presents the effect of the Company’s interest rate swap derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021.

For the Three Months Ended
September 30,

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships (Interest
Rate Swaps) 2022 2021 2022 2021
Amount of gain recognized on derivative in "Accumulated
other comprehensive income" $ 5,397  $ —  $ 8,198  $ — 
Amount of income (loss) reclassified from "Accumulated other
comprehensive income" into interest expense $ 45  $ —  $ (169) $ — 

Interest expense, net presented in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income, in which the effects of cash flow hedges are
recorded, totaled $1.8 million and $3.9 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, respectively, and $1.0 million and $2.8 million for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, respectively.

As of September  30, 2022, the Company did not have any derivatives in a net liability position and did not post any collateral related to these
agreements. If the Company had breached any of these provisions as of September 30, 2022, it could have been required to settle its obligations under the
agreements at their termination value.

Note 7. Leases

Lessor Accounting

As of September 30, 2022, the Company's properties were leased primarily to the USPS, with leases expiring at various dates through May 31, 2031.
Certain leases had expired and were in holdover status as of September  30, 2022 as discussed below. Certain leases contain renewal, termination and/or
purchase options exercisable at the lessee’s election. Therefore, such options are only recognized once they are deemed reasonably certain, typically at the time
the option is exercised. All of the Company’s leases are operating leases with the exception of two that are direct financing leases. The Company's operating
leases and direct financing leases are described below.

Rental income related to the Company’s leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease term. The Company’s total revenue
includes fixed base rental payments provided under the lease and variable payments which principally consist of tenant expense reimbursements for certain
property operating expenses, including real estate taxes. The Company elected the practical expedient to account for its lease and non-lease components as a
single combined operating lease component under Topic 842. As a result, rental income and tenant reimbursements were aggregated into a single line within
rental income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

The following table represents rental revenue that the Company recognized related to its operating leases (in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended
September 30,

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2022 2021 2022 2021
Fixed payments $ 11,435  $ 8,623  $ 31,581  $ 23,791 
Variable payments 1,746  1,581  5,084  3,877 

$ 13,181  $ 10,204  $ 36,665  $ 27,668 
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Future minimum lease payments to be received as of September 30, 2022 under non-cancellable operating leases for the next five years and thereafter
are as follows:

Year Ending December 31, Amount 
(in thousands)

    2022 - Remaining $ 10,314 
2023 39,581 
2024 36,062 
2025 29,620 
2026 21,791 

Thereafter 25,701 
Total $ 163,069 

Explanatory Notes:

(1) The above minimum lease payments to be received do not include reimbursements from tenants for real estate taxes and other reimbursed expenses.

(2) As of September 30, 2022, the leases at 63 of the Company's properties were expired, and the USPS was occupying such properties as a holdover tenant.
Holdover rent is typically paid as the greater of estimated market rent or the rent amount due under the expired lease.

Purchase Option Provisions

As of September  30, 2022, operating leases for 56 of the Company’s properties provided the USPS with the option to purchase the underlying
property either at fair market value or at fixed prices, in each case as of dates set forth in the lease agreement. As of September 30, 2022, 53 of these properties
acquired for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $40.1 million had an aggregate purchase option price of approximately $47.8 million and the
remaining three properties acquired for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $2.6 million had purchase options exercisable at fair market value.

Direct Financing Leases

As of September  30, 2022 and December  31, 2021, financing leases for two of the Company's properties provide the USPS with the option to
purchase the underlying property at fixed prices as of dates set forth in the lease agreement. The components of the Company’s net investment in financing
leases as of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 are summarized in the table below (in thousands):

As of
September 30,

2022

As of
December 31,

2021

Total minimum lease payment receivable $ 33,499  $ 34,352 
Less: unearned income (17,350) (18,139)
Investment in financing leases, net $ 16,149  $ 16,213 

Revenue earned under direct financing leases for the three and nine months ended September  30, 2022 were $0.3 million and $0.8 million,
respectively, and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021 were $0.01 million and

(1)

(2)
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$0.03 million, respectively, which is recorded in "Fee and other" in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

Future lease payments to be received under the Company’s direct financing leases as of September 30, 2022 for the next five years and thereafter are
as follows:

Year Ending December 31, Amount
(in thousands)

2022 – Remaining $ 284 
2023 1,137 
2024 1,137 
2025 1,137 
2026 1,137 

Thereafter 28,667 
Total $ 33,499 

Lessee Accounting

As a lessee, the Company has ground and office leases which were classified as operating leases. As of September  30, 2022, these leases had
remaining terms, including renewal options, of two to 56 years and a weighted average remaining lease term of 25.0 years. Operating  right-of-use
("ROU")  assets and lease liabilities are included in “Prepaid expenses and other assets, net” and “Accounts payable, accrued expense and other” on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets as follows (in thousands):

As of
September 30,

2022

As of
December 31,

2021

ROU asset – operating leases $ 968  $ 1,058 
Lease liability – operating leases $ 971  $ 1,071 

The difference between the recorded ROU assets and lease liabilities is mainly due to the reclassification of the below market ground lease intangible
asset which was included within the ROU assets recognized upon transition.

Operating lease assets and liabilities are measured at the commencement date based on the present value of future lease payments. As most of the
Company’s leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at the commencement
date in determining the present value of future payments. The Company used a weighted average discount rate ranging from 4.25% to 5.76% based on the yield
of its current borrowings in determining its lease liabilities. 

Lease expense for minimum lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The lease terms may include options to extend
or terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise that option.

Operating lease expense for each of the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 was $0.06 million and $0.2 million, respectively.
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Future minimum lease payments to be paid by the Company as a lessee for operating leases as of September 30, 2022 for the next five years and
thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

2022 — Remaining $ 59 
2023 239 
2024 115 
2025 40 
2026 37 

Thereafter 1,222 
Total future minimum lease payments 1,712 
Interest discount (741)
Total $ 971 

Note 8. Income Taxes

TRS

In connection with the IPO, the Company and REAC jointly elected to treat REAC as a TRS. REAC performs management services, including for
properties the Company does not own, and advisory services to third-party owners of postal properties. REAC generates income, resulting in federal and state
corporate income tax liability for REAC. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, income tax (benefit) expense related to REAC was $(0.02)
million and $0.01 million, respectively. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, income tax expense related to REAC was $0.04 million and
$0.08 million, respectively.

Other

In connection with the IPO, the indirect sole shareholder of United Postal Holdings, Inc. ("UPH"), a portion of our predecessor, agreed to reimburse
the Company for unrecognized tax benefits primarily related to the utilization of certain loss carryforwards at UPH. The Company recorded an indemnification
asset in the same amount as the unrecognized tax benefits. The indirect sole shareholder of UPH will be responsible for all tax related matters related to UPH.

As of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company had unrecognized tax benefits of $0.03 million and $0.2 million, respectively, which
are inclusive of interest and penalties, and a corresponding indemnification asset, which are included in "Prepaid expenses and other assets" on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. During the three months ended September 30, 2022, the Company reversed $0.2 million of unrecognized tax benefits and the
corresponding indemnification asset due to the expiration of statute of limitations.

Note 9. Related Party Transactions

Management Fee Income

REAC recognized management fee income of $0.3 million and $0.9 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, respectively,
and $0.3 million and $1.0 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, respectively, from various parties which were affiliated with the
Company's CEO. These amounts are included in “Fee and other” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income. Accrued
management fees receivable of $0.3 million and $0.3 million as of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively, are included in “Rent and other
receivables” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Related Party Lease

On May 17, 2019, the Company entered into a lease for office space in Cedarhurst, New York with an entity affiliated with the Company’s CEO (the
“Office Lease”). Pursuant to the Office Lease, the monthly rent is $15,000 subject to escalations. The term of the Office Lease is five years commencing on
May 17, 2019 and will expire on May 16, 2024. Rental expenses associated with the Office Lease for each of the three and nine months ended September 30,
2022 and 2021 were $0.05 million and $0.1 million, respectively, and was recorded in “General and administrative expenses” in the Consolidated Statements of
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Operations and Comprehensive Income. The Company determined this Office Lease was an operating lease. For further details, see Note 7. Leases.

Guarantees

As disclosed above in Note 5. Debt, Mr. Spodek personally guaranteed a portion of or the entire amount outstanding under the Company's loans with
First Oklahoma Bank and Vision Bank, totaling $1.9 million and $1.9 million as of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. As a guarantor,
Mr. Spodek's interests with respect to the amount of debt he is guaranteeing (and the terms of any repayment or default) may not align with the Company’s
interests and could result in a conflict of interest.

Share Purchase

On November 16, 2021, Mr. Spodek acquired 58,823 shares of the Company's Class A common stock at a price of $17.00 per share as a part of the
Company's November 2021 Offering (as defined below).

Note 10. Earnings Per Share

EPS is calculated by dividing net income attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the period.

The following table presents a reconciliation of income from operations used in the basic and diluted EPS calculations (dollars in thousands, except
share and per share data).

For the Three Months Ended
September 30,

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2022 2021 2022 2021

Numerator for earnings per share – basic and diluted:
Net income attributable to common stockholders $ 931  $ 531  $ 2,479  $ 1,304 
Less: Income attributable to participating securities (252) (164) (723) (489)
Numerator for earnings per share — basic and diluted $ 679  $ 367  $ 1,756  $ 815 

Denominator for earnings per share – basic and diluted 18,554,578  13,413,132  18,467,581  13,044,340 

Basic and diluted earnings per share $ 0.04  $ 0.03  $ 0.10  $ 0.06 

Explanatory Note:

(1) Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution of the conversion of obligations and the assumed exercises of securities including the effects of restricted shares
and RSUs issued under the Company’s 2019 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) (See Note 11. Stockholder’s Equity). The effect of such shares and RSUs would
not be dilutive and were not included in the computation of weighted average number of shares outstanding for the periods presented in the table above. OP
Units and LTIP Units are redeemable for cash or, at the Company’s option, shares of Class A common stock on an one-for-one basis. The income allocable to
such OP Units and LTIP Units is allocated on this same basis and reflected as non-controlling interests in these Consolidated Financial Statements. As such,
the assumed conversion of these OP Units and LTIP Units would have no net impact on the determination of diluted EPS.

Note 11. Stockholder’s Equity 

On January 11, 2021, the Company priced a public offering of 3.25 million shares of its Class A common stock (the “January 2021 Offering”) at
$15.25 per share. On January 11, 2021, the underwriters purchased the full allotment of 487,500 shares pursuant to a 30-day option at $15.25 per share (the
“January 2021 Additional Shares”). The January 2021 Offering, including the January 2021 Additional Shares, closed on January 14, 2021 resulting in $57.0
million in gross proceeds, and

(1)
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approximately $53.9 million in net proceeds after deducting approximately $3.1 million in underwriting discounts and before giving effect to $0.6 million in
other related expenses.

On November 16, 2021, the Company priced a public offering of 4.25 million shares of its Class A common stock (the “November 2021 Offering”) at
$17.00 per share. On November 16, 2021, the underwriters purchased the full allotment of 637,500 shares pursuant to a 30-day option at $17.00 per share (the
“November 2021 Additional Shares”). The November 2021 Offering, including the November 2021 Additional Shares, closed on November 19, 2021 resulting
in $83.1 million in gross proceeds, and approximately $79.0 million in net proceeds after deducting approximately $4.1 million in underwriting discounts and
before giving effect to $0.2 million in other related expenses.

ATM Program

On December 14, 2020, the Company entered into separate open market sale agreements for its at-the-market offering program (the "ATM Program")
with each of Jefferies LLC, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated, BMO Capital Markets Corp., Janney Montgomery Scott LLC and D.A. Davidson & Co.
(“D.A. Davidson”), pursuant to which the Company may offer and sell, from time to time, shares of the Company’s Class A common stock having an aggregate
sales price of up to $50.0 million. On May 14, 2021, the Company delivered to D.A. Davidson a notice of termination of the open market sale agreement with
D.A. Davidson, which termination became effective May 14, 2021.

The following table summarizes the activity under the ATM Program for the period presented (dollars in thousands, except per share amounts). During
the year ended December 31, 2021, 344,717 shares were issued under the ATM Program. During the three months ended September 30, 2022, 227,473 shares
were issued under the ATM Program. As of September 30, 2022, the Company had approximately $39.4 million remaining that may be issued under the ATM
Program.

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2022

Shares issued 227,473 
Gross proceeds $ 3,730 
Fees and issuance costs 223 
Net proceeds received $ 3,507 
Average gross sales price per share $ 16.40 

Dividends

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, the Board of Directors approved and the Company declared and paid dividends of $5.5
million and $16.0 million, respectively, to Class A common stockholders, Voting Equivalency stockholders, OP unitholders and LTIP unitholders, or $0.2325
per share or unit and $0.69 per share or unit, respectively, as shown in the table below.

Declaration Date Record Date Date Paid Amount Per Share
February 1, 2022 February 15, 2022 February 28, 2022 $ 0.2275 

April 28, 2022 May 13, 2022 May 27, 2022 $ 0.23 
July 27, 2022 August 8, 2022 August 26, 2022 $ 0.2325 

Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests in the Company represent OP Units held by the Company's prior investors and certain sellers of properties to the Company
and LTIP Units primarily issued to the Company’s CEO and the Board of Directors in connection with the IPO and/or in lieu of their cash compensation.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2022, the Company issued 118,389 LTIP Units in January 2022 to the Company’s CEO for his 2021 incentive
bonus, his election to defer 100% of his 2022 annual salary and for long term incentive compensation, issued 38,174 LTIP Units in June 2022 to the Board of
Directors for their annual retainers as compensation for their services as directors and issued 5,040 LTIP Units in July 2022 to a consultant under the
consultancy agreement with the Company. In addition, during the nine months ended September 30, 2022,
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the Company issued 597,769 OP Units to certain contributors in connection with portfolio acquisitions and a business acquisition (for further details, see Note
13. Business Acquisitions).

As of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, non-controlling interests consisted of 4,069,990 OP Units and 536,868 LTIP Units and 3,472,221
OP Units and 375,265 LTIP Units, respectively. This represented approximately 19.4% and 17.1% of the outstanding Operating Partnership units as of
September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. OP Units and shares of common stock generally have the same economic characteristics, as they
share equally in the total net income or loss and distributions of the Operating Partnership. Beginning on or after the date which is 12 months after the later of
(i) the completion of the IPO or (ii) the date on which a person first became a holder of common units, each limited partner and assignees of limited partners
will have the right, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the partnership agreement to require the Operating Partnership to redeem all or a portion of
the OP Units held by such limited partner or assignee in exchange for cash, or at the Company's sole discretion, shares of the Class A common stock, on an
one-for-one basis determined in accordance with and subject to adjustment under the partnership agreement.

The Operating Partnership unitholders are entitled to share in cash distributions from the Operating Partnership in proportion to their percentage
ownership of OP Units.

Restricted Stock and Other Awards

Pursuant to the Company’s Plan, the Company may grant equity incentive awards to its directors, officers, employees and consultants. As of
September 30, 2022, the remaining shares available under the Plan for future issuance was 1,180,962. The Plan provides for grants of stock options, stock
awards, stock appreciation rights, performance units, incentive awards, other equity-based awards (including LTIP Units) and dividend equivalents in
connection with the grant of performance units and other equity-based awards.

The following table presents a summary of the Company's outstanding restricted shares of Class A common stock, LTIP Units and RSUs. The balance
as of September 30, 2022 represents unvested restricted shares of Class A common stock and LTIP Units and RSUs that are outstanding, whether vested or not:

Restricted
Shares 

LTIP
Units RSUs Total Shares/Units

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Outstanding, as of January 1, 2022 302,552  375,265  128,753  806,570  $ 15.71 
Granted 227,814  161,603  100,746  490,163  $ 16.88 
Vesting of restricted shares (57,247) —  —  (57,247) $ 16.68 
Forfeited (382) —  —  (382) $ 17.04 

Outstanding, as of September 30, 2022 472,737  536,868  229,499  1,239,104  $ 16.12 

Explanatory Notes:    

(1) Represents restricted shares awards included in Class A common stock.

(2) The time-based restricted share awards granted to the Company's officers and employees typically vest in three annual installments or cliff vest at the end
of three years or eight years. The time-based restricted share awards granted to the Company's independent directors vest over three years.

(3) Includes 464,657 LTIP Units granted to the Company’s CEO that vest over  eight years, 67,171 LTIP Units granted to the Company's independent
directors that vest over three years or cliff vest at the end of three years and 5,040 LTIP Units granted to a consultant under the consultancy agreement
with the Company that will vest on December 31, 2022.

(4) Includes 47,005 RSUs granted to certain officers and employees of the Company during the nine months ended September 30, 2022, subject to the
achievement of a service condition and a market condition. Such RSUs are market-based awards and are subject to the achievement of hurdles relating to
the Company’s absolute total stockholder return and continued employment with the Company over the approximately three-year period from the grant
date through December 31, 2024. The number of market-based RSUs is based on the number of shares issuable upon achievement of the market-based

(1)(2) (3) (4)

(5)
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metric at target. Also, includes 40,961 time-based RSUs issued for 2021 incentive bonuses to certain employees that vested fully on January 31, 2022, the
date of grant, and 12,780 time-based RSUs granted to certain employees for their election to defer a portion of their 2022 salary that will vest on
December 31, 2022. RSUs reflect the right to receive shares of Class A common stock, subject to the applicable vesting criteria.

(5) Includes 39,075 of restricted shares that vested and 18,172 shares of restricted shares that were withheld to satisfy minimum statutory withholding
requirements. 

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, the Company recognized compensation expense of $1.0 million and $3.7 million,
respectively, related to all awards. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, the Company recognized compensation expense of $0.8
million and $2.7 million, respectively, related to all awards.

As of  September  30, 2022, there was  $12.7 million  of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested awards, which is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 4.5 years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In connection with the IPO, the Company established the Postal Realty Trust, Inc. 2019 Qualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), which
allows the Company’s employees to purchase shares of the Class A common stock at a discount. A total of 100,000 shares of Class A common stock was
reserved for sale and authorized for issuance under the ESPP. The Code permits the Company to provide up to a 15% discount on the lesser of the fair market
value of such shares of Class A common stock at the beginning of the offering period and the close of the offering period. As of September 30, 2022 and
December 31, 2021, 29,710 and 16,293 shares have been issued under the ESPP since commencement, respectively. During the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2022, the Company recognized compensation expense of $0.02 million and $0.03 million, respectively. During the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2021, the Company recognized compensation expense of $0.01 million and $0.03 million, respectively.

Note 12. Commitments and Contingencies 

As of September 30, 2022, the Company was not involved in any litigation nor to its knowledge is any litigation threatened against the Company, that,
in management’s opinion, would result in any material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of operations, or which is not covered by
insurance.

In the ordinary course of the Company’s business, the Company enters into non-binding (except with regard to exclusivity and confidentiality) letters
of intent indicating a willingness to negotiate for acquisitions. There can be no assurance that definitive contracts will be entered into with respect to any matter
covered by letters of intent, that the Company will close the transactions contemplated by such contracts on time, or that the Company will consummate any
transaction contemplated by any definitive contract.

Note 13. Business Acquisition

On March 4, 2022, the Company acquired a postal real estate consulting business and its employees (the “Business”) through the issuance of 79,794
OP Units and $0.2 million in cash for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $1.7 million to complement the Company's core business of acquiring,
managing, servicing and being a consolidator of postal properties.

In connection with the acquisition, the Company recorded an intangible asset related to the customer relationships and trade name of approximately
$0.2 million in “Prepaid expenses and other assets, net” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, which is being amortized over the estimated useful life of four
years, and goodwill of approximately $1.5 million. The goodwill recorded is deductible for income tax purposes. All assets acquired in connection with the
business acquisition were assigned to the Company’s single reportable segment. The results of operations of this acquired business have been included since
the acquisition date. Pro forma information has not been presented for this business acquisition because such information is not material to the financial
statements.

Note 14. Subsequent Events

The Company's Board of Directors approved, and on October 26, 2022, the Company declared a third quarter common stock dividend of $0.235 per
share, which is payable on November 28, 2022 to stockholders of record as of November 7, 2022.
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As of the date of this report, the Company had $159.0 million drawn on the Credit Facilities, with $50.0 million drawn on the 2021 Term Loan, $75.0
million drawn on the 2022 Term Loan and $34.0 million drawn on the 2021 Revolving Credit Facility.

During the period subsequent to September 30, 2022, the Company acquired 7 properties for approximately $5.9 million, excluding closing costs.

During the period subsequent to September 30, 2022, the Company had entered into definitive agreements to acquire 14 properties for approximately
$5.1 million. However, the Company can provide no assurances that the acquisitions of these properties will be consummated on the terms and timing the
Company expects, or at all.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis is based on, and should be read in conjunction with, the unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements and the
related notes thereto of Postal Realty Trust, Inc. contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2021.

As used in this section, unless the context otherwise requires, references to “we,” “our,” “us,” and “our company” refer to Postal Realty Trust, Inc., a
Maryland corporation, together with our consolidated subsidiaries, including Postal Realty LP, a Delaware limited partnership, of which we are the sole
general partner and which we refer to in this section as our Operating Partnership.

Forward-Looking Statements 

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of federal securities laws. In particular, statements
pertaining to our capital resources, acquisitions, property performance and results of operations contain forward-looking statements. You can identify forward-
looking statements by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “believes,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “seeks,” “approximately,” “intends,”
“plans,” “pro forma,” “estimates” or “anticipates” or the negative of these words and phrases or similar words or phrases which are predictions of or indicate
future events or trends and which do not relate solely to historical matters. You can also identify forward-looking statements by discussions of strategy, plans or
intentions.

Forward-looking statements involve numerous risks and uncertainties and you should not rely on them as predictions of future events. Forward-
looking statements depend on assumptions, data or methods which may be incorrect or imprecise and we may not be able to realize them. We do not guarantee
that the transactions and events described will happen as described (or that they will happen at all). The following factors, among others, could cause actual
results and future events to differ materially from those set forth or contemplated in the forward-looking statements:

• change in the status of the United States Postal Service (“USPS”) as an independent agency of the executive branch of the U.S. federal
government;

• change in the demand for postal services delivered by the USPS;

• our ability to come to an agreement with the USPS regarding new leases or lease renewals;

• the solvency and financial health of the USPS;

• defaults on, early terminations of or non-renewal of leases or relocation, closure or consolidation of postal offices or delivery routes by the USPS;

• the competitive market in which we operate;

• changes in the availability of acquisition opportunities;

• our inability to successfully complete real estate acquisitions or dispositions on the terms and timing we expect, or at all;

• our failure to successfully operate developed and acquired properties;

• adverse economic or real estate developments, either nationally or in the markets in which our properties are located;

• decreased rental rates or increased vacancy rates;

• change in our business, financing or investment strategy or the markets in which we operate;

• fluctuations in interest rates and increased operating costs;
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• general economic conditions (including inflation, rising interest rates, uncertainty regarding ongoing conflict between Russia and Ukraine and
their related impact on macroeconomic conditions);

• financial market fluctuations;

• our failure to generate sufficient cash flows to service our outstanding indebtedness;

• our failure to obtain necessary outside financing on favorable terms or at all;

• failure to hedge effectively against interest rate changes;

• our reliance on key personnel whose continued service is not guaranteed;

• the outcome of claims and litigation involving or affecting us;

• changes in real estate, taxation, zoning laws and other legislation and government activity and changes to real property tax rates and the taxation
of real estate investment trusts (“REITs”) in general;

• operations through joint ventures and reliance on or disputes with co-venturers;

• cybersecurity threats;

• uncertainties and risks related to adverse weather conditions, natural disasters and climate change;

• exposure to liability relating to environmental and health and safety matters;

• governmental approvals, actions and initiatives, including the need for compliance with environmental requirements;

• lack or insufficient amounts of insurance;

• limitations imposed on our business in order to maintain our status as a REIT and our failure to maintain such status; and

• public health threats such as the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.

While forward-looking statements reflect our good faith beliefs, they are not guarantees of future performance. We disclaim any obligation to publicly
update or revise any forward-looking statement to reflect changes in underlying assumptions or factors, of new information, data or methods, future events or
other changes after the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, except as required by applicable law. You should not place undue reliance on any forward-
looking statements that are based on information currently available to us or the third parties making the forward-looking statements. For a further discussion
of these and other factors that could impact our future results, performance or transactions, you should carefully review and consider (i) the information
contained under Item 1A titled “Risk Factors” herein and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K and (ii) such similar information as may be contained in our
other reports and filings that we make with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

Overview

Company

We were formed as a Maryland corporation on November 19, 2018 and commenced operations upon completion of our initial public offering and the
related formation transactions. We conduct our business through a traditional UPREIT structure in which our properties are owned by our Operating
Partnership directly or through limited partnerships, limited liability companies or other subsidiaries. During the nine months ended September 30, 2022, we
acquired 266 properties leased to the USPS for approximately $105.7 million, including closing costs. As of September 30, 2022, our portfolio consists of
1,232 owned properties, located in 49 states and one territory and comprising approximately 5.2 million net leasable interior square feet.
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We are the sole general partner of our Operating Partnership through which our properties are directly or indirectly owned. As of November 2, 2022,
we owned approximately 80.4% of our outstanding common units of limited partnership interest in our Operating Partnership (the “OP Units”), including long
term incentive units of our Operating Partnership (the “LTIP Units”). Our Board of Directors oversees our business and affairs.

ATM Program

On December 14, 2020, we entered into separate open market sale agreements for its at-the-market offering program (the "ATM Program") with each
of Jefferies LLC, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated, BMO Capital Markets Corp., Janney Montgomery Scott LLC and D.A. Davidson & Co. ("D.A.
Davidson"), pursuant to which we may offer and sell, from time to time, shares our Class A common stock having an aggregate sales price of up to $50.0
million. On May 14, 2021, we delivered to D.A. Davidson a notice of termination of the open market sale agreement with D.A. Davidson, which termination
became effective May 14, 2021. During the year ended December 31, 2021, 344,717 shares were issued under the ATM Program. During the nine months
ended September 30, 2022, 227,473 shares were issued under the ATM Program. As of September 30, 2022, we had approximately $39.4 million of availability
remaining under the ATM Program.

Executive Overview

We are an internally managed REIT with a focus on acquiring and managing properties leased primarily to the USPS, ranging from last mile post
offices to larger industrial facilities. We believe the overall opportunity for consolidation that exists within the postal logistics network is very attractive. We
continue to execute our strategy to acquire and consolidate postal properties that we believe will generate strong earnings for our shareholders.

Geographic Concentration

As of September 30, 2022, we owned a portfolio of 1,232 properties located in 49 states and one territory and leased primarily to the USPS. For the
nine months ended September 30, 2022, 15.4% of our total rental income was concentrated in Pennsylvania.

Emerging Growth Company

We are an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the "JOBS Act"), and we are eligible to take
advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not “emerging growth companies,”
including not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, reduced disclosure
obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements and exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding
advisory vote on executive compensation and shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved.

In addition, the JOBS Act also provides that an “emerging growth company” can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), for complying with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an emerging growth
company can delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. We have availed ourselves
of these exemptions; although, subject to certain restrictions, we may elect to stop availing ourselves of these exemptions in the future even while we remain an
“emerging growth company.”

We will remain an “emerging growth company” until the earliest to occur of (i) the last day of the fiscal year during which our total annual revenue
equals or exceeds $1.235 billion (subject to periodic adjustment for inflation), (ii) the last day of the fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of our IPO, (iii)
the date on which we have, during the previous three-year period, issued more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt or (iv) the date on which we are
deemed to be a “large accelerated filer” under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).

We are also a “smaller reporting company” as defined in Regulation S-K under the Securities Act and have elected to take advantage of certain scaled
disclosures available to smaller reporting companies. We may continue to be a smaller reporting company even after we are no longer an “emerging growth
company.”

We elected to be treated as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), beginning with our short taxable year ending
December 31, 2019. As long as we qualify as a REIT, we generally will not be subject to federal income tax to the extent that we distribute our taxable income
for each tax year to our stockholders.
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Factors That May Influence Future Results of Operations

The USPS

We are dependent on the USPS’ financial and operational stability. The USPS is currently facing a variety of circumstances that are threatening its
ability to fund its operations and other obligations as currently conducted without intervention by the federal government. The USPS is constrained by laws and
regulations that restrict revenue sources and pricing, mandate certain expenses and cap its borrowing capacity. As a result, among other consequences, the
USPS is unable to fund its mandated expenses and continues to be subject to mandated payments to its retirement system and benefits. While the USPS has
recently undertaken, and proposes to undertake, a number of operational reforms and cost reduction measures, such as higher rates and slower deliveries for
certain services and potential closure, relocation or consolidation of certain facilities and delivery routes, the USPS has taken the position such measures alone
will not be sufficient to maintain its ability to meet all of its existing obligations when due or allow it to make the critical infrastructure investments that have
been deferred in recent years. These measures have also led to significant criticism and litigation, which may result in reputational or financial harm or
increased regulatory scrutiny of the USPS or reduced demand for its services. The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic (including new or mutated variants of
COVID-19) and measures being taken to prevent its spread also continue to have a material and unpredictable effect on the USPS’ operations and liquidity,
including volatility in demand for mail services, significant changes in the mix of mail and packages processed through the USPS’ network and significant
additional operating expenses caused by pandemic-related disruptions. The COVID-19 pandemic and other geopolitical and economic factors have also created
inflationary pressures resulting in higher compensation, transportation and fuel costs for the USPS. If the USPS becomes unable to meet its financial
obligations or its revenue declines due to reduced demand for its services, the USPS may reduce its demand for leasing postal properties, which would have a
material adverse effect on our business and operations. For additional information regarding the risks associated with the USPS, see the section entitled “Risk
Factors - Risks Related to the USPS” under Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Revenues

We derive revenues primarily from rent and tenant reimbursements under leases with the USPS for our properties, and fee and other from the
management agreements with respect to the postal properties owned by Andrew Spodek, our chief executive officer, and his affiliates managed by our taxable
REIT subsidiary (“TRS”), income recognized from properties accounted for as financing leases and revenue from providing certain advisory services. Rental
income represents the lease revenue recognized under leases primarily with the USPS which includes the impact of above and below market lease intangibles
as well as tenant reimbursements for payments made by our tenants under the leases to reimburse us for the majority of real estate taxes paid at each property.
Fee and other principally represent (i) revenue our TRS received from postal properties owned by Mr. Spodek and his affiliates pursuant to the management
agreements and is a percentage of the lease revenue for the managed property, (ii) revenue our TRS received from providing advisory services to third-party
owners of postal properties and (iii) income recognized from properties accounted for as financing leases. As of September 30, 2022, properties leased to our
tenants had an average remaining lease term of approximately four years. Factors that could affect our rental income and fee and other in the future include, but
are not limited to: (i) our ability to renew or replace expiring leases and management agreements; (ii) local, regional or national economic conditions; (iii) an
oversupply of, or a reduction in demand for, postal space; (iv) changes in market rental rates; (v) changes to the USPS’ current property leasing program or
form of lease; and (vi) our ability to provide adequate services and maintenance at our properties and managed properties.

Operating Expenses

We lease our properties primarily to the USPS. The majority of our leases are modified double-net leases, whereby the tenant is responsible for
utilities, routine maintenance and reimbursement of property taxes and the landlord is responsible for insurance, roof and structure. Thus, an increase in costs
related to the landlord’s responsibilities under these leases could negatively influence our operating results. Refer to “Lease Renewal” below for further
discussion.

Operating expenses generally consist of real estate taxes, property operating expenses, which consist of insurance, repairs and maintenance (other than
those for which the tenant is responsible), property maintenance-related payroll and depreciation and amortization. Factors that may affect our ability to control
these operating costs include but are not limited to: the cost of periodic repair, renovation costs, the cost of re-leasing space, inflation and the potential for
liability under applicable laws. Recoveries from the tenant are recognized as revenue on an accrual basis over the periods in which the related expenditures are
incurred. Tenant reimbursements and operating expenses are recognized on a gross basis, because (i) generally, we are the primary obligor with respect to the
real estate taxes and (ii) we bear the credit risk in the event the tenant does not reimburse the real estate taxes.
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The expenses of owning and operating a property are not necessarily reduced when circumstances, such as market factors and competition, cause a
reduction in income from the property. If revenues drop, we may not be able to reduce our expenses accordingly. Costs associated with real estate investments
generally will not be materially reduced even if a property is not fully occupied or other circumstances cause our revenues to decrease. As a result, if revenues
decrease in the future, static operating costs may adversely affect our future cash flow and results of operations.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expense represents personnel costs, professional fees, legal fees, insurance, consulting fees, information technology costs
and other expenses related to our day-to-day activities of being a public company. While we expect that our general and administrative expenses will continue
to rise as our portfolio grows, we expect that such expenses as a percentage of our revenues will decrease over time due to efficiencies and economies of scale.

Equity-Based Compensation Expense

All equity-based compensation expense is recognized in our Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income as components of
general and administrative expense and property operating expenses. We issue share-based awards to align our directors' and employees’ interests with those of
our investors.

Indebtedness and Interest Expense

On August 9, 2021, we entered into a $150.0 million senior unsecured revolving credit facility (the "2021 Revolving Credit Facility") and a $50.0
million senior unsecured term loan facility (the "2021 Term Loan"). In connection with entering into the credit facilities, we terminated our previous credit
facility and paid off the outstanding loans thereunder. On May 11, 2022, we amended the Credit Facilities (the "First Amendment") to, among other things, add
a new $75.0 million senior unsecured delayed draw term loan facility (the "2022 Term Loan" and, together with the 2021 Revolving Credit Facility and the
2021 Term Loan, the “Credit Facilities”), replace the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) with the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR") as the
benchmark interest rate and allow for a decrease in the applicable margin by 0.02% if we achieve certain sustainability targets.

We intend to use the Credit Facilities for working capital purposes, which may include repayment of mortgage indebtedness, property acquisitions and
other general corporate purposes. We amortize on a non-cash basis the deferred financing costs associated with our debt to interest expense using the straight-
line method, which approximates the effective interest rate method over the terms of the related loans. Any changes to the debt structure, including debt
financing associated with property acquisitions, could materially influence the operating results depending on the terms of any such indebtedness.

Income Tax Benefit (Expense)

As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to federal income tax on our net taxable income that we distribute currently to our stockholders. Under the
Code, REITs are subject to numerous organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement that they distribute each year at least 90% of their
REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the deduction for dividends paid and excluding any net capital gains. If we fail to qualify for taxation as a
REIT in any taxable year and do not qualify for certain statutory relief provisions, our income for that year will be taxed at regular corporate rates, and we
would be disqualified from taxation as a REIT for the four taxable years following the year during which we ceased to qualify as a REIT. Even though we
qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we may still be subject to state and local taxes on our income and assets and to federal income and excise
taxes on our undistributed income. Additionally, any income earned by our existing TRS and any other TRS we form in the future will be subject to federal,
state and local corporate income tax.

Lease Renewal

As of November 2, 2022, the leases at 72 of our properties, representing approximately 249,000 net leasable interior square feet and $2.4 million in
annual contractual rental revenue, were expired and the USPS was occupying such properties as a holdover tenant. As of the date of this report, the USPS had
not vacated or notified us of its intention to vacate any of these properties. When a lease expires, the USPS becomes a holdover tenant on a month-to-month
basis typically paying the greater of estimated market rent or the rent amount under the expired lease.

While we currently anticipate that we will execute new leases for all properties that have expired or will expire, there can be no guarantee that we will
be successful in executing new leases, obtaining positive rent renewal spreads or renewing the
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leases on terms comparable to those of the expiring leases. Even if we are able to renew these expired leases, the lease terms may not be comparable to those of
the previous leases. If we are not successful, we will likely experience reduced occupancy, rental income and net operating income, as well as diminished
borrowing capacity under our credit facilities, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and ability to make
distributions to shareholders. Refer to “Risk Factors - Risks Related to the USPS” under Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2021 for additional information regarding the risks associated with the USPS.

Results of Operations

Comparison of the Three Months Ended September 30, 2022 and the Three Months Ended September 30, 2021

For the Three Months Ended
September 30,

2022 2021 $ Change % Change
Revenues
Rental income $ 13,181  $ 10,204  $ 2,977  29.2 %
Fee and other 594  325  269  82.8 %
Total revenues 13,775  10,529  3,246  30.8 %

Operating expenses
Real estate taxes 1,836  1,625  211  13.0 %
Property operating expenses 1,346  983  363  36.9 %
General and administrative 3,040  2,596  444  17.1 %
Depreciation and amortization 4,637  3,743  894  23.9 %
Total operating expenses 10,859  8,947  1,912  21.4 %

Income from operations 2,916  1,582  1,334  84.3 %

Other income 44  159  (115) (72.3)%

Interest expense, net
Contractual interest expense (1,670) (734) (936) 127.5 %
Write-off and amortization of deferred financing fees (156) (295) 139  (47.1)%
Interest income —  1  (1) (100.0)%
Total interest expense, net (1,826) (1,028) (798) 77.6 %

Income before income tax benefit (expense) 1,134  713  421  59.0 %
Income tax benefit (expense) 16  (37) 53  (143.2)%
Net income $ 1,150  $ 676  $ 474  70.1 %

Revenues

Rental income – Rental income includes net rental income as well as the recovery of certain operating costs and property taxes from tenants. Rental
income increased by $3.0 million to $13.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2022 from $10.2 million for the three months ended September
30, 2021 due to the volume of our acquisitions.

Fee and other – Fee and other revenue increased by $0.3 million to $0.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2022 from $0.3 million for
the three months ended September 30, 2021 primarily due to income received from properties accounted for as financing leases.
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Operating Expense

Real estate taxes – Real estate taxes increased by $0.2 million to $1.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2022 from $1.6 million for
the three months ended September 30, 2021 due to the volume of our acquisitions.

Property operating expenses – Property operating expenses increased by $0.4 million to $1.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2022
from $1.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2021. Property management expenses are included within property operating expenses and
increased by $0.1 million to $0.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2022 from $0.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2021 due
to expanding our property management staff as a result of our continued growth as well as an increase in equity-based compensation expense related to awards
that have been granted to our property management employees. The remainder of the increase of $0.3 million is related to expenses for repairs and maintenance
and insurance, which increase is primarily due to the volume of our acquisitions.

General and administrative – General and administrative expenses increased by $0.4 million to $3.0 million for the three months ended September 30,
2022 from $2.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2021 primarily due to expanding our staff and increase in information technology costs as a
result of our continued growth as well as an increase in equity-based compensation expense related to awards that have been granted to our employees in 2021
and during the three months ended September 30, 2022.

Depreciation and amortization  – Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $0.9 million to $4.6 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2022 from $3.7 million for three months ended September 30, 2021 due to the volume of our acquisitions.

Other Income

Other income primarily includes insurance recoveries related to property damage claims. Other income decreased by $0.1 million to $0.04 million for
the three months ended September 30, 2022 from $0.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2021, primarily due to lower insurance recoveries.

Total Interest Expense, Net

During the three months ended September 30, 2022, we incurred total interest expense, net of $1.8 million compared to $1.0 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2021. The increase in interest expense is primarily related to higher amount of borrowings under the Credit Facilities to finance
our acquisitions.
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Comparison of the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2022 and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2022 2021 $ Change % Change
Revenues
Rental income $ 36,665  $ 27,668  $ 8,997  32.5 %
Fee and other 1,765  1,137  628  55.2 %
Total revenues 38,430  28,805  9,625  33.4 %

Operating expenses
Real estate taxes 5,131  3,877  1,254  32.3 %
Property operating expenses 4,106  2,708  1,398  51.6 %
General and administrative 9,990  7,881  2,109  26.8 %
Depreciation and amortization 12,966  10,131  2,835  28.0 %
Total operating expenses 32,193  24,597  7,596  30.9 %

Income from operations 6,237  4,208  2,029  48.2 %

Other income 718  276  442  160.1 %

Interest expense, net
Contractual interest expense (3,467) (2,000) (1,467) 73.4 %
Write-off and amortization of deferred financing fees (440) (585) 145  (24.8)%
Loss on early extinguishment of debt —  (202) 202  (100.0)%
Interest income 1  2  (1) (50.0)%
Total interest expense, net (3,906) (2,785) (1,121) 40.3 %

Income before income tax expense 3,049  1,699  1,350  79.5 %
Income tax expense (13) (75) 62  (82.7)%
Net income $ 3,036  $ 1,624  $ 1,412  86.9 %

Revenues

Rental income includes net rental income as well as the recovery of certain operating costs and property taxes from tenants. Rental income increased
by $9.0 million to $36.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 from $27.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 due to the
volume of our acquisitions.

Fee and other. Other revenue increased by $0.6 million to $1.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 from $1.1 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2021, primarily due to income received from properties accounted for as financing leases.

Operating Expense

Real estate taxes – Real estate taxes increased by $1.3 million to $5.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 from $3.9 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2021 due to the volume of our acquisitions.

Property operating expenses – Property operating expenses increased by $1.4 million to $4.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2022
from $2.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2021. Property management expenses are included within property operating expenses and
increased by $0.5 million to $1.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 from $1.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2021. The
remainder of the increase of $0.9 million is related to expenses for repairs and maintenance and insurance, which increase is due to the volume of our
acquisitions.
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General and administrative – General and administrative expenses increased by $2.1 million to $10.0 million for the nine months ended September
30, 2022 from $7.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 primarily due to expanding our staff and increase in information technology costs as
a result of our continued growth, as well as an increase in equity-based compensation expense related to awards that have been granted to our employees.

Depreciation and amortization  – Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $2.8 million to $13.0 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2022 from $10.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 due to the volume of our acquisitions.

Other Income

Other income primarily includes insurance recoveries related to property damage claims. Other income increased by $0.4 million to $0.7 million for
the nine months ended September 30, 2022 from $0.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2021, primarily due to higher insurance recoveries.

Total Interest Expense, Net

During the nine months ended September 30, 2022, we incurred total interest expense, net of $3.9 million compared to $2.8 million for the nine
months ended September 30, 2021. The increase in interest expense is primarily related due to a higher amount of borrowings under the Credit Facilities to
finance our acquisitions.

Cash Flows

Comparison of the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2022 and the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2021

We had $4.6 million of cash and $0.3 million of escrows and reserves as of September 30, 2022 compared to $4.0 million of cash and $0.9 million of
escrows and reserves as of September 30, 2021.

Cash flow from operating activities – Net cash provided by operating activities increased by $5.1 million to $18.6 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2022 compared to $13.4 million for the same period in 2021. The increase is primarily due to the volume of properties that we have acquired, all
of which have generated additional rental income and related changes in working capital.

Cash flow to investing activities – Net cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 primarily consisted of $96.4
million of acquisitions and $4.1 million of escrow deposits for acquisition and construction, capital improvements and other investing activities, offset by $0.6
million of insurance proceeds that were received. Net cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 primarily consisted of
$60.7 million of acquisitions.

Cash flow from financing activities – Net cash provided by financing activities increased by $29.5 million to $79.3 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2022 compared to $49.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2021. The increase was primarily related to our 2022 Term Loan,
additional borrowings under our 2021 Revolving Credit Facility, proceeds received from our ATM Program and the paydown of two mortgage financings
during the nine months ended September 30, 2021, offset by a decrease in net proceeds from issuance of shares and increased payments of dividends and
distributions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Analysis of Liquidity and Capital Resources

We had approximately $4.6 million of cash and $0.3 million of escrows and reserves as of September 30, 2022.

On August 9, 2021, we entered into the Credit Facilities, which include the $150.0 million 2021 Revolving Credit Facility and the $50.0 million 2021
Term Loan, with Bank of Montreal, as administrative agent, and BMO Capital Markets Corp., People’s United Bank, National Association, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. and Truist Securities, Inc. as joint lead arrangers and joint book runners. Additional participants in the Credit Facilities include Stifel Bank & Trust
and TriState Capital Bank. In connection with entering into the Credit Facilities, we terminated our previous credit facility and paid off the outstanding loans
thereunder. On May 11, 2022, we entered into the First Amendment to, among other things, add the 2022 Term Loan. As of September 30, 2022, we had
$156.0 million of aggregate principal amount outstanding under our Credit Facilities, with $50.0 million drawn on the 2021 Term Loan, $75.0 million drawn
on the 2022 Term Loan and $31.0 million drawn on the 2021 Revolving Credit Facility.
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The Credit Facilities include an accordion feature which permit us to borrow up to an additional $150.0 million under the 2021 Revolving Credit
Facility and up to an additional $75.0 million under the term loans, in each case subject to customary terms and conditions. The 2021 Revolving Credit Facility
matures in January 2026, which may be extended for two six-month periods subject to customary conditions, the 2021 Term Loan matures in January 2027 and
the 2022 Term Loan matures in February 2028. Borrowings under the Credit Facilities carry an interest rate of, (i) in the case of the 2021 Revolving Credit
Facility, either a base rate plus a margin ranging from 0.5% to 1.0% per annum or Adjusted Term SOFR (as defined below) plus a margin ranging from 1.5% to
2.0% per annum, or (ii) in the case of the 2021 Term Loan and the 2022 Term Loan, either a base rate plus a margin ranging from 0.45% to 0.95% per annum
or Adjusted Term SOFR plus a margin ranging from 1.45% to 1.95% per annum, in each case depending on a consolidated leverage ratio. With respect to the
2021 Revolving Credit Facility, we will pay, if the usage is equal to or less than 50%, an unused facility fee of 0.20% per annum, or if the usage is greater than
50%, an unused facility fee of 0.15% per annum, in each case on the average daily unused commitments under the 2021 Revolving Credit Facility.

The Credit Facilities are guaranteed, jointly and severally, by us and certain of our indirect subsidiaries and contain customary covenants that, among
other things, restrict, subject to certain exceptions, our ability to incur indebtedness, grant liens on assets, make certain types of investments, engage in
acquisitions, mergers or consolidations, sell assets, enter into certain transactions with affiliates and pay dividends or make distributions. The Credit Facilities
require compliance with consolidated financial maintenance covenants to be tested quarterly, including a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, maximum total
leverage ratio, minimum tangible net worth, maximum secured leverage ratio, maximum unsecured leverage ratio, minimum unsecured debt service coverage
ratio and maximum secured recourse leverage ratio. The Credit Facilities also contain certain customary events of default, including the failure to make timely
payments under the Credit Facilities, any event or condition that makes other material indebtedness due prior to its scheduled maturity, the failure to satisfy
certain covenants and specified events of bankruptcy and insolvency. As of September 30, 2022, we were in compliance with all of the Credit Facilities’ debt
covenants.

We have four interest rate swaps with a total notional amount of $125.0 million that are used to manage our interest rate risk and fix the SOFR
component on the Credit Facilities. Within the $125.0 million, $50.0 million of the swaps mature in January 2027 and fix the interest rate of the 2021 Term
Loan at 2.291% as of September  30, 2022. The additional $50.0 million of the swaps mature in February 2028 and fix the first $50.0 million amount
outstanding under the 2022 Term Loan at 4.237% as of September 30, 2022. The remaining $25.0 million of the swaps mature in February 2028 and fix the
remaining $25.0 million amount outstanding under the 2022 Term Loan at 4.81% as of September 30, 2022.

Our short-term liquidity requirements primarily consist of operating expenses and other expenditures associated with our properties, distributions to
our limited partners and distributions to our stockholders required to qualify for REIT status, capital expenditures and, potentially, acquisitions. We expect to
meet our short-term liquidity requirements through net cash provided by operations, cash, borrowings under our Credit Facilities and the potential issuance of
securities.

Our long-term liquidity requirements primarily consist of funds necessary for the repayment of debt at maturity, property acquisitions and non-
recurring capital improvements. We expect to meet our long-term liquidity requirements with net cash from operations, long-term indebtedness including our
Credit Facilities and mortgage financing, the issuance of equity and debt securities and proceeds from select sales of our properties. We also may fund property
acquisitions and non-recurring capital improvements using our Credit Facilities pending permanent property-level financing.

We believe we have access to multiple sources of capital to fund our long-term liquidity requirements, including the incurrence of additional debt and
the issuance of additional equity securities. However, in the future, there may be a number of factors that could have a material and adverse effect on our ability
to access these capital sources, including unfavorable conditions in the overall equity and credit markets, our degree of leverage, our unencumbered asset base,
borrowing restrictions imposed by our lenders, general market conditions for REITs, our operating performance, liquidity and market perceptions about us. The
success of our business strategy will depend, to a significant degree, on our ability to access these various capital sources. In addition, we continuously evaluate
possible acquisitions of postal properties, which largely depend on, among other things, the market for owning and leasing postal properties and the terms on
which the USPS will enter into new or renewed leases.

To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we must make distributions to our stockholders aggregating annually at least 90% of our REIT taxable
income determined without regard to the deduction for dividends paid and excluding capital gains. As a result of this requirement, we cannot rely on retained
earnings to fund our business needs to the same extent as other entities that are not REITs. If we do not have sufficient funds available to us from our
operations to fund our business needs, we will need to find alternative ways to fund those needs. Such alternatives may include, among other things, divesting
ourselves of properties (whether or not the sales price is optimal or otherwise meets our strategic long-term objectives), incurring
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indebtedness or issuing equity securities in public or private transactions, the availability and attractiveness of the terms of which cannot be assured.

Consolidated Indebtedness

As of September 30, 2022, we had approximately $189.1 million of outstanding consolidated principal indebtedness. The following table sets forth
information as of September 30, 2022 with respect to our outstanding indebtedness (in thousands):

Outstanding
Balance as of

September 30, 2022
Interest

Rate at September 30, 2022
Maturity

Date
Revolving Credit Facility :

2021 Revolving Credit Facility $ 31,000  SOFR+150 bps January 2026
2021 Term Loan 50,000  SOFR+145 bps January 2027
2022 Term Loan 75,000  SOFR+145 bps February 2028
Secured Borrowings:

Vision Bank 1,409  3.69 % September 2041
First Oklahoma Bank 337  3.625 % December 2037
Vision Bank – 2018 844  3.69 % September 2041
Seller Financing 282  6.00 % January 2025
AIG – December 2020 30,225  2.80 % January 2031

Total Principal $ 189,097 

Explanatory Notes:

(1) See above under "— Analysis of Liquidity and Capital Resources" for details regarding the Credit Facilities.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, we incurred $0.06 million and $0.2 million, respectively, of unused facility fees related to
the 2021 Revolving Credit Facility.

(2) Based upon the one-month Adjusted Term SOFR, which is SOFR plus a term SOFR adjustment of 0.10%, subject to a 0% floor (the “Adjusted Term
SOFR”).

(3) Five properties are collateralized under this loan and Mr. Spodek also provided a personal guarantee of payment for 50% of the outstanding amount
thereunder. The loan has a fixed interest rate of 3.69% for the first five years with interest payments only (ending in October 2026), then adjusting every
subsequent five year period thereafter with principal and interest payments to the rate based on the five year weekly average yield on United States
Treasury securities adjusted to a constant maturity of five years, as made available to the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the "Five-
Year Treasury Rate"), plus a margin of 2.75%, with a minimum annual rate of 2.75%.

(4) The loan is collateralized by first mortgage liens on four properties and a personal guarantee of payment by Mr. Spodek. The loan has a fixed interest
rate of 3.625% for the first five years (ending in August 2026), then adjusting annually thereafter to a variable annual rate of Wall Street Journal Prime
Rate with a minimum annual rate of 3.625%.

(5) The loan is collateralized by first mortgage liens on one property and a personal guarantee of payment by Mr. Spodek. The loan has a fixed interest rate
of 3.69% for the first five years with interest payments only (ending in October 2026), then adjusting every subsequent five year period thereafter with
principal and interest payments to the rate based on the Five-Year Treasury Rate, plus a margin of 2.75%, with a minimum annual rate of 2.75%.

(6) In connection with the acquisition of a property, we obtained seller financing secured by the property in the amount of $0.4 million requiring five annual
payments of principal and interest of $0.1 million with the first installment due on January 2, 2021 based on a 6.0% interest rate per annum through
January 2, 2025.

(7) The loan is secured by a first mortgage lien on an industrial property located in Warrendale, Pennsylvania. The loan has a fixed interest rate of 2.80%
with interest-only payments for the first five years and fixed payments of principal and interest thereafter based on a 30-year amortization schedule.

(1)

(2)

(1) (2)

 (1) (2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)
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Secured Borrowings as of September 30, 2022

As of September 30, 2022, we had approximately $33.1 million of secured borrowings outstanding, all of which are currently fixed rate debt with a
weighted average interest rate of 2.90% per annum.

Dividends

To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we are required to pay dividends to stockholders at least equal to 90% of our REIT taxable income
determined without regard to the deduction for dividends paid and excluding net capital gains. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022, we
paid cash dividends of $0.2325 and $0.69, respectively, per share. Our Board of Directors approved, and on October 26, 2022, we declared a third quarter
common stock dividend of $0.2350 per share, which will be paid on November 28, 2022 to stockholders of record as of November 7, 2022

Inflation

Because most of our leases provide for fixed annual rental payments without annual rent escalations, our rental revenues are fixed while our property
operating expenses are subject to inflationary increases. A majority of our leases provide for tenant reimbursement of real estate taxes and thus the tenant must
reimburse us for real estate taxes. We believe that if inflation increases expenses over time, increases in lease renewal rates will materially offset such increase.

Subsequent Real Estate Acquisitions

Subsequent to September  30, 2022, we have acquired 7 properties in individual or portfolio transactions for an aggregate of approximately $5.9
million, excluding closing costs.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Refer to the heading titled “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021
for a discussion of our critical accounting policies and estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of our adoption of new accounting pronouncements, please see Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Notes to
the of our Consolidated Financial Statements included herein.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and interest rates. Our future earnings, cash flows and fair values relevant to
financial instruments are dependent upon prevailing market interest rates. Our primary market risk results from our indebtedness, which bears interest at both
fixed and variable rates. As of September  30, 2022, our indebtedness was approximately $189.1 million, consisting of approximately $156.0  million of
variable-rate debt and approximately $33.1 million of fixed-rate debt. Of the $156.0 million variable-rate debt, $50.0 million relates to the 2021 Term Loan and
$75.0 million relates to the 2022 Term Loan, which have been fixed through interest rate swaps. When factoring in the 2021 Term Loan and the 2022 Term
Loan as fixed-rate debt through the interest rate swaps, as of September 30, 2022, approximately $31.0 million of our indebtedness was variable-rate debt and
approximately $158.1 million was fixed-rate debt. Assuming no increase in the amount of our outstanding variable-rate indebtedness, if the one-month
Adjusted Term SOFR were to increase or decrease by 1.0%, our cash flows would decrease or increase by approximately $0.3 million on an annualized basis.

Subject to maintaining our status as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we manage our market risk on variable rate debt through the use of
interest rate swaps that fix the rate on all or a portion of our variable rate debt for varying periods up to maturity. In the future, we may use other derivative
instruments such as interest cap agreements to, in effect, cap the interest rate on all or a portion of the debt for varying periods up to maturity. This in turn,
reduces the risks of variability of cash flows created by variable rate debt and mitigates the risk of increases in interest rates. Our objective when undertaking
such arrangements will be to reduce our floating rate exposure. However, we provide no assurance that our efforts to manage interest rate volatility will
successfully mitigate the risks of such volatility in our portfolio and we do not intend to enter into hedging arrangements for speculative purposes.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act that are designed to
ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports under the Exchange Act is processed, recorded, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the rules and regulations of the SEC and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive
Officer (Principal Executive Officer) and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer), as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required
disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is required to apply its judgment in
evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

We have carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our Principal Executive Officer and
Principal Financial Officer, regarding the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on
the foregoing, our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer have concluded, as of the end of the period covered by this report, that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by us in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange
Act (i)  is processed, recorded, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and (ii)  is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our Principal Executive Officer and our Principal Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow for timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may in the future be party to various claims and routine litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. Our management
does not believe that any such litigation will materially affect our financial position or operations.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes from the risk factors disclosed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” under Item 1A of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

None.
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Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit Exhibit Description
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002.*
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002.*
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002.*
32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002.*
101.INS INSTANCE DOCUMENT**
101.SCH SCHEMA DOCUMENT**
101.CAL CALCULATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT**
101.LAB LABELS LINKBASE DOCUMENT**
101.PRE PRESENTATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT**
101.DEF DEFINITION LINKBASE DOCUMENT**
104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

*    Exhibits filed with this report.

**    Submitted electronically herewith. Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following documents formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting
Language): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets; (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income; (iii) Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Equity; (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows; and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

POSTAL REALTY TRUST, INC.

Date: November 3, 2022 By: /s/ Andrew Spodek
Andrew Spodek
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: November 3, 2022 By: /s/ Robert B. Klein
Robert B. Klein
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT, AS AMENDED,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Andrew Spodek, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Postal Realty Trust, Inc. (the “registrant”) for the period ended September 30, 2022;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: November 3, 2022 /s/ Andrew Spodek
Andrew Spodek,
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
Postal Realty Trust, Inc.



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT, AS AMENDED,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert B. Klein, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Postal Realty Trust, Inc. (the “registrant”) for the period ended September 30, 2022;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: November 3, 2022 /s/ Robert B. Klein
Robert B. Klein
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
Postal Realty Trust, Inc.



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Certificate of Principal Executive Officer

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Postal Realty Trust, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2022, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Andrew Spodek, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company at the dates and for the periods presented.

POSTAL REALITY TRUST, INC.

Date: November 3, 2022 By: /s/ Andrew Spodek
Andrew Spodek
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

This written report is being furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Report. A signed original of this written statement
required by Section 906 has been provided to Postal Realty Trust, Inc. and will be retained by Postal Realty Trust, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Postal Realty Trust, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2022, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Robert B. Klein, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company at the dates and for the periods presented.

POSTAL REALITY TRUST, INC.

Date: November 3, 2022 By: /s/ Robert B. Klein
Robert B. Klein
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

This written report is being furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Report. A signed original of this written statement
required by Section 906 has been provided to Postal Realty Trust, Inc. and will be retained by Postal Realty Trust, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


